





























































































































































































































Released under the Official Information Act 1982

o I S

From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Sunday, 17 October 2010 7:49 a.m.

Subject: D: EQC Visit from the California Earthquake Authority
Attachments: EQC Visit from the California Earthquake Authority

Hi, grateful if you could assist and Iet-qggaw I'am in the US now, thanks hugh
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From:
Sent: : ctober 2010 11:55 a.m.

To: Hugh Cowan

Cc:

Subject: EQC Visit from the California Earthquake Authority
Hugh,

Hi, | am the Director of Claims for the California Earthquake Authority.

_ has been in communication with your- about a visit by the CEA executives to
ew Zealand. See below.

The four CEA executives have tentatively arranged to be there with the EQC during the week of November 15
through 18. Departing on the morning of the 19th.

I have been asked to pull together a schedule of what we could see and do during our visit. 1am hoping you can
help or direct me to the appropriate person.

Following is a list of the CEA team and their area of interest.

He would like to see damage, and meet with your CEO. He has great
B€ and interest in reinsurance.
He would like to see damage, and talk to your accounting head to learn about
OW you get the information to process payments and make sure you have monies to pay claims.

He wants to understand what finances are used in this earthquake to pay claims. Are You going to issue debt to help
pay the claims. He is also a reinsurance expert.

- See damage and learn about the whole process for a response to a large scale
uake. Learn about your legal system.

I'very much want to get out and ride along with inspectors and see how they evaluate
and estimate damage. Learn about your project management office and processes. Your needs prioritization
system. How you handle repairs for householders. Visit a EQC field office. Anything you think would be of interest
to a fellow Claims executive.

Since we very much want to NOT inconvenience the EQC in any way, we need your suggestions on how to best use
our time for the four days we are with you. (11-15 to 11-18.) We will travel to wherever you tell us to go.
Wellington or Christchurch, or both.

I know you are a day ahead of us, so | am sending this to you on my Friday afternoon, in hopes that when | arrive
back at work on my Monday am, you will have had time to give me a return e-mail with a rough idea of what we
should plan for from a travel standpoint. We are anxious to make our plane reservations to take advantage of the
lowest possible airfare.

Thanks much.

reet, Suite 1000
Sacramento CA 95814
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From EIENEN
Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2010 6:46 PM

Cc:
Subject: RE: EQC Visit

Hi‘jl(hﬁ) week of November 15 is looking very good, and we wili begin looking into travel arrangements. | believe
our team will consist of the following:

As | mentioned, we very much want to NOT inconvenience the EQC in any way. As time allows, however, we would
be very interested in learning as much as possible from you all regarding the various public policy, financial, legal,
and claim paying challenges you have been confronting in the weeks following the earthquake. Do you have any
immediate suggestions which days of that week would work best to meet with members of the lan, Hugh and
perhaps others from the EQC? Should we coordinate directly with you regarding this visit?

Any suggestions you can provide regarding logistics (where to stay, what to see, where to go, who to meet with,
etc....) while we are there would be greatly appreciated. Maybe it would be helpful to speak by phone sometime in

the near future, and | will be happy to call at your convenience if you could suggest a time that would work best.

Many thanks, and we look forward to meeting you soon.

----- Original Message-——

o HEC ¢ <"
Sent: Monday, October 11, 2010 12:10 PM

To
Subject: RE: EQC Visit

Great. Look forward to hearing from you-
Cheers,

B =)

_____ r"

Sent: Monday, October 11, ?

B
Subject: RE: EQC Visit




iCi [ 1982
der the Official Information Act
Thanks, SIESIRN] Perhaps 3RS H e _

to make sure, and I will get back to you as soon as possible. If we can't make this
have to be mid-December or early January.

Take care,

California Earthquake Authority
801 K Street
Sacramento, CA 95814

To:
Subject: RE: EQC Visit

i TG

I've had a chat with lan Simpson, our chief executive, and Hugh Cowan, our research manager, and they believe
some time during the second half of November would be a good time for

Subject: Re: EQC Visit
Thanks much, o 18}

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 7, 2010, at 8:48 PM, r—@EQC.govt.nz<mailto-@EQC.govt,nz>> wrote:
Hi SN

Very nice to talk to you. Will be in touch next week once I've had a chance to talk to lan Simpson (CEO) and‘)
—about your wish to visit.

Kind regards,



Released under the Official Information Act 1982

From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Monday, 18 October 2010 6:06 a.m.
To:
Subject: RE:

-)I am sorry, now yot mention Chch | know who you mean. He is our procurement contractor. | do not have his

number but you could reach him through EIESIENIEM our field ops leader. EIENEI -ocards Hugh

--- original message ---
From: @med.govt.nz>
Subject: RE:

Date: 16th October 2010
Time: 5:35:24 pm

Hugh,
No probs.

| was introduced to him on Friday at EQC's office in Christchurch and just assumed he was EQC. I'll figure it out by
another route.

Cheers,

Canterbury Earthquake Recovery Policy Team Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet Mob _

From: Hugh Cowan [mailto:hacowan@eqc.govt.nz)

Sent: Sunday, 17 October 2010 7:47 a.m.
To:
Subject: RE

Hi [EIElIf ot sure who you are referring to. Perhaps lan can help, | am in the US at present. Regards Hugh

--- original message ---
From:
Subject:
Date: 16th October 2010
Time: 2:38:11 pm

med.govt.nz>

Hugh,
Sorry to bother you with a relatively trivial matter - can you please send me ‘mail address?

Cheers,

9(2) (38

Canterbury Earthquake Recovery Policy Team Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet Mob_

14
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Tuesday, 19 October 2010 4:11 p.m.

To: e <d.govtnz

Subject: FWD: FW: Christchurch EQC claims project management contract
Attachments: FW: Christchurch EQC claims project management contract

Hi Elllaapt sure that this request is appropriate but you will have a better sense of it. | know EIENB) bt do not
have time to reply nor do I feel sure of the protocol that should apply in this case. Grateful if you would consider and
respond for me if so inclined. Cheers Hugh

26
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Marija Bakulich

=== e
From: EQC Info
Sent: Tuesday, 19 October 2010 2:59 p.m.
To: Hugh Cowan
Subject: FW: Christchurch EQC claims project management contract
Attachments: image001.jpg
From:

Sent: Monday, 18 October 2010 11:29 a.m.
To: EQC Info
Subject: Christchurch EQC claims project management contract

Good morning

Is it possible to please be sent a copy of the contract tender documentation that was successfully won by Fletcher
Construction for the Project Management to coordinate and manage building repairs valued at $10,000 to $100,000.

We are an established Christchurch/NZ building company specialising in building repairs, renovation and rebuilding
and wish to understand the nature of the contract as part of deciding whether to participate in this segment of the
rebuild.

Thank you

Regards

This email and any files transmitted with it are contidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have
received this email in error please notify the system manager. Please note that any views or opinions presented in this email are solely those of the author
and do not necessarily represent thase of the company. Finally, the recipient should check this email and any attachments for the presence of viruses.
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Tuesday, 19 October 2010 1:34 p.m.
To:
Subject: contacts on US visit

Further to my note to Ian earlier explaining the purpose and scope of my US travel, in case he sees merit in

specifying them, the agencies I am visiting include:

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) - Building Science Division
IRIS (Incorporated Research Institutions for Seismology - Director

National Science Foundation (NSF) - Geotechnical Engineering Programme Director and Geophysics

Programme Director

US Geological Survey

National Earthquake Information Center
Impact Forecasting (AonBenfield)

regards

Hugh
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Tuesday, 19 October 2010 1:13 p.m.
To: Ian Simpson;!
Subject: USA visit

lan, my trip consists of three elements, 1. to liaise with US federal agencies about enhanced collaboration incl
funding related to post quake investigations, esp liquefaction and building science, both of which will be crucial to
informing future reassessment and pricing of risk by reinsurers, 2. Work with our reinsurance broker (modeling) on
imminent version release of Minerva loss model, 3. Presenting to multisector grouping of hazard assessment
agencies on NZ approach to CAT response planning, with focus on strengthening bilateral links. Trip planned since
late 2009. Hope this is adequate. Let me know if you need more or different. Hugh
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S I
From: Hugh Cowan
Sent: Tuesday, 19 October 2010 9:45 a.m.

Subject: FWD:
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Saia) — —
From: _@auckland.ac.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 19 October 2010 9:28 a.m.

To: Hugh Cowan
Cc:

Attachments: Darfield_Reflection__FZGW_Experiment.doc

Hugh, EIEllE)

Please find your mutual contacts for a potential discussion about our proposed study of fault healing at the Darfield
NZ earthquake site.

As | described on the phone to EJfEJIthis is a joint Southern California Earthquake Center and University of
Canterbury and IESE initiative.

begin_of_the_skype_highlighting _
end_of_the_skype_highlighting 785 N
begin_of_the_skype_highlighting _
end_of_the_skype_highlighting 785 N

Thanks,

9(2)(H

|nst|tute o! Earth Science & Engineering

Rm 627, Level 6, 58 Symonds St.
University of Auckland

Private Bag 92019 Auckland Mail Center
Web site: http://www.iese.co.nz/ Auckland 1142, New Zealand

CAUTION: This email message and accompanying data may contain information that is confidential. If you are not
the intended recipient, you are notified that any use, dissemination, or copying of any part of this message and
accompanying data, is prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify me immediately and
delete this email message from your computer. Thank you. Please also note that this message may have been
intercepted and modified by unknown third parties prior to its receipt by you.
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Collaborative Seismic Reflection & Fault Zone Guided Wave Study of 2010 Darfield Earthquake Zone

! Southern California Earthquake Center, University of Southern California, CA, USA; m
2 |Institute of Earth Science and Engineering, University of Auckland, NZ; mauckland.ac.nz
*University of Canterbury, Christchurch, New Zea Iand;_@,canterburv.ac.nz

The New Zealand M7.1 Canterbury (Darfield) Earthquake on the 4™ September 2010 occurred on a
previously unknown strike slip fault buried beneath the alluvial plain that had not ruptured in at least
10,000 years and caused significant damage to the Christchurch urban area. Although diminishing in
frequency and magnitude aftershocks of up to M4 continue to occur in the region. We can assume the
damage zone of this splay fault of the South Island’s transpressional regime was fully healed due to the
long return times associated with this fault. Thus it presents an opportunity to examine the newly
developed damage zone and provide a base line for further experiments to monitor the damage zone
healing with time. We propose a collaborative IESE/UoCanterbury/SCEC study of this event’s site.

We propose to deploy a high density seismic array across and along the rupture zone in the Canterbury
plains to record both reflected vibrator seismic signals and Fault Zone Guided Waves (FZGW) from
aftershock activity. The latter waves give direct evidence of the width and magnitude of fault damage.
We deployed three broadband stations on the fault rupture within two weeks of the earthquake
(Henderson et al., 2010) and are currently analysing these data for FZGWs. To continue these
observations, we propose to use a multichannel seismic reflection recording system to profile reflections
from the structure, stratigraphy, and the dispersion and amplitude-position characteristic of the Darfield
Fault damage zone. A potential baseline deployment could use a 120 channel system (allowing 40 3C
stations). However, in this proposal we seek to cooperate with UoCanterbury and SCEC colleagues to
make use of this unique earthquake to greatly expand our understanding of fault character and damage.

An opportunity exists to mobilise the University of Calgary’s 600 channel Aries Aram system as part of a
collaborative program with the University of Canterbury. Canterbury has proposed to use the Aram
system to profile the stratigraphy and offset structure surrounding the rupture zone. Their goal is to
conduct seismic reflection profiling across the fault rupture to map the previously unknown fault
geometry and its rupture through the Quaternary alluvium. IESE would assist carrying out this work with

t the University of Canterbury. Recent seismic reflection profiling in NW Canterbury is of
high quality (Dorn et al.,, 2010}, holding promise for the Darfield study. The flat topography and
widespread support of the landowners following the earthquake will aid rapid mobilisation. The seismic
reflection data could be used to calibrate some of the information about the fault modelled using FZGW.

We proposed to use the Aram system in a follow on study, placing 200 3C stations along and across the
Darfield rupture for a minimum of 2-3 week deployment. Calgary’s geophones have 10 Hz natural
frequency and we would replace some of the sensors with alternative 4.5 Hz geophones. If this system
were to be mobilised for the Canterbury study, we would use Calgary’s mini-vibe to test the ability of a
vibroseis source to induce FZGWs. If successful, this would allow repeated studies in a year or two to
map the healing of the damage zone associated with the fault rupture. Alternatively explosive seismic
sources could be utilised to provide a repeatable experiment once aftershock activity has diminished.

If funding and timing worked out, this project would contribute cost sharing of and additional seismic
source and receivers to a seismic experiment on the dominant fault feature in New Zealand’s South
Island, the Alpine Fault, scheduled for January 2011,
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Previous FZGW experiments to study the effects or changes to faults and their damage zones associated
with earthquake events, with increasingly dense instrument array through time, have been performed in
California associated with the Landers, Hector Mine and Parkfield earthquakes (Li et al., 1994; Li and
Vidale, 2001; Li et al.,, 2003; Li, 2007). These studies provided insight into the fault and rupture
continuity, damage zone geometry and properties in space and time including information about crack
density and fluid flow.
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Dorn, C., Carpentier, S., Keiser, A.E., Green, A.G., Horstmeyer, H., Campbell, F.,, Campbell, J., Jongens, R., Finnemore, M., and
Nobes, D.C., 2010, First seismic imaging results of tectonically complex structures at shallow depths beneath the northwest
Canterbury Palins, New Zealand. Journal of Applied Geophysics. In press.

Henderson, M., Boese, C., Savage, M. Fry, W., Thurber, C., Jacobs, K., Karalliyadda, S., Syracuse, E., Lord, N., Davy, R., Unglert, K.,
Carrizales, A., Eccles, J., Zaino, A., Rawlinson, R., Seward, A., Malin, P,, Jolly, A., Townend, J., Shelley, A., and Wech, A., 2010,
Portable broadband seismometer deployment to record aftershocks of the 4 September 2010 Darfield Earthquake. Proceedings
of the GeoNZ Conference 21-24™ November 2010.

Li, Y., Aki, K., Adams, D. And Hasemi, A., 1994, Seismic guided waves trapped in the fault zone of the Landers, California,
earthquake of 1992. ). Geophys. Res.. Vol. V99 {No. 6), pp. 11,705-11,722.

Li, Y. G., and Vidale, J. 2001, Healing of the shallow fault zone from 1994-1998 after the 1992 M7.5 Landers, California,
earthquake. Geophy. Res. Lett.. Vol. 28 (No.15), pp. 2999-3002.

Li, Y. G., Vidale, J.E., Day, S.M., Oglesby, D.D. and Cochran, E., 2003, Post-seismic fault healing on the 1999 M7.1 Hector Mine,

California earthquake. Bull. Seism. Soc. Am.. Vol. 93 (No. 2), pp. 854-864.

M6 Parkfield Earthquake and Their Implications. Earth, Planets and Space. Vol. 59, pp. 21-31.

Indicative Budget — Darfield Earthquake collaborative seismic reflection & FZGW study .

Personnel SCEC Collaborator (Y-G Li) 1x1 mo. UssS
Aram Technician 1x1 mo. USs
Aram/vib Assistant 1x1 mo. Uss
Seismic field crew 6x1 mo. USs
Travel SCEC Collaborator 1 Los Angeles-Canterbury ret  USS$
Aram Technician 1 Calgary-Canterbury return Uss
Aram/vib Assistant 1 Calgary-Canterbury return Uss

Seismic field crew 3 Auckland-Canterbury return  US$S
Canterbury crew 3 Canterbury-Darfield Uss

e
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Tuesday, 19 October 2010 9:44 a.m.

To:

Subject: FWD: RAPID fault guided waves on NZ earthquake
Attachments: RAPID fault guided waves on NZ earthquake
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From: @auckland.ac.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 19 October 2010 9:20 a.m.

To: Hugh Cowan

Subject: RAPID fault guided waves on NZ earthquake
Hello,

Please find attached a short summary of a RAPID-type project- (USC) and | would like considered for
funding.

I will be in touch concerning it on Wed (NZ time).

Best,

o2)( 3

Institute of Earth Science & Engineering
Rm 627, Level 6, 58 Symonds St.
University of Auckland

Private Bag 92019 Auckland Mail Center
Web site: hitp://www.iese.co.nz/ Auckland 1142, New Zealand

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

Sent: Tuesday, 19 October 2010 9:42 a.m.
To:

Subject: Re:

Thanks EJENE)

I am at IRIS today and I will visit NSF tomorrow, mid-late morning. I will hope to meet[Ejillthen.

regards

Hugh

On Tue, Oct 19, 2010 at 9:27 AM, _@'auck]and_ac_nz> wrote:
Hugh, EEll=)

Please find your mutual contacts for a potential discussion about our proposed study of fault healing at the
Darfield NZ earthquake site.

As I described on the phone to -this is a joint Southern California Earthquake Center and University
of Canterbury and IESE initiative.

begin_of the skype highlighting -
end_of the skype highlighting 785 N
begin_of_the skype highlighting _
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

Subject: RE: FUEL CARD RECEIPTS

Hello -I am presently in USA but | did hand taxi receipts to-)llasj week before | left. Regards Hugh
--- original message ---

From: " egc.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: FUEL CARD RECEIPTS

Date: 18th October 2010

Time: 3:59:24 pm

Hi Hugh

Sorry yes | mean Taxi receipts. Can you please hand them to me when you have a minute.

Cheers

----- Original Message--—-
From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Friday, 15 October 2010 9:33 a.m.
To:_

Subject: RE: FUEL CARD RECEIPTS
Hi [EIENEN do you mean taxi? | do not have fuel receipts. Cheers hugh

--- original message ---

Subject:

Date: 15th October 2010
Time: 9:23:44 am

Hi Hugh

Can | please have the following fuel card receipts

DATE DESTINATION S

18/09/10 Riccarton — City ChCh 13.20
31/08/10 Central Hutt — Wgton Airport 96.00
11/09/10 Wetn Intl Airport — Lower Hutt 72.30
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— S— e —
From: Hugh Cowan
Sent: Tuesday, 19 October 2010 9:18 a.m.
To:
Subject: RE: EQC Visit from the California Earthquake Authority

Hi EIEBIEH! notice you indicated my return as 26 Oct but in fact my first day in the office will be 1 Nov. | get back on
Sat 30 Oct :)

--- original message ---

From:' @eqc.govt.nz>

Subject: EQC Visit from the California Earthquake Authority
Date: 17th October 2010

Time: 3:27:26 pm

Hi .(a)

Hugh Cowan and —have asked me to respond to you regarding your proposed visit to New Zealand. Hugh is
in the US at the moment (although not in California) and won't be back in the office until Tuesday, 26 October.

Things are still pretty frantic here, but we are happy to arra nge meetings around the dates you have mentioned, ie,
15-18 November inclusive. We suggest two days in Wellington followed by two days in Christchurch, and will put
together a programme on Hugh's return. If it is easier for you, we can arrange internal flights and accommodation

for you.

Please let me know if | can be of assistance.
Regards

| Earthquake Commission (EQC) Majestic illis Street | P O Box 790 | Wellington

From:

Sent: Saturday, 16 October 2010 11:55 a.m.

To: Hugh Cowan (HACowan@eqc.govt.nz)

Cc:

Subject: EQC Visit from the California Earthquake Authority

Hugh,

Hi, | am the Director of Claims for the California Earthquake Authority.

My CEO,_ has been in communication with your(SlEJIEIIEbout a visit by the CEA executives to
and. See below.

New Zea

The four CEA executives have tentatively arranged to be there with the EQC during the week of November 15
through 18. Departing on the morning of the 19th.
10
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| have been asked to pull together a schedule of what we could see and do during our visit. | am hoping you can
help or direct me to the appropriate person.

Following is a list of the CEA team and their area of interest.

ﬂ He would like to see damage, and meet with your CEO. He has great

knowledge and interest in reinsurance.

He would like to see damage, and talk to your accounting head to learn about
how you get the information to process payments and make sure you have monies to pay claims.
He wants to understand what finances are used in this earthquake to pay claims. Are you going to issue debt to help
pay the claims. He is also a reinsurance expert.

— See damage and learn about the whole process for a response to a large scale

earthquake. Learn about your legal system.

| very much want to get out and ride along with inspectors and see how they evaluate
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

| know you are a day ahead of us, so | am sending this to you on my Friday afternoon, in hopes that when | arrive
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

K Street, Suite 1000
Sacramento CA 95814

-----0riginal Message-----
From
Sent: Tuesday, October 12, 2010 6:46 PM
To:
Cc:
Subject: RE: EQC Visit

Hi-]'(l'gg)week of November 15 is looking very good, and we will begin looking into travel arrangements. | believe
our team will consist of the following:

11
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

——Original Message-----

Sent: Monday, October 11, 2010 12:10 PM

To:
Subject: RE: EQC Visit

Great. Look forward to hearing from you-

Cheers,

o(2)(4
--—-0riginal Message-----
o T

Sent: Monday, October 11, 2010 1:35 PM
To

Subject: RE: EQC Visit
Thanks,- Perhaps the week of November 15th will work. | need to check into a couple of things on our end
to make sure, and | will get back to you as soon as possible. If we can't make this happen that week, it would either

have to be mid-December or early January.

Take care,

California Earthquake Authority
801 K Street
Sacramento, CA 95814

12
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From ST - - o]

Sent: Sunday, October 10, 2010 2:11 PM
To:
Subject: RE: EQC Visit

i EIEE)
I've had a chat with lan Simpson, our chief executive, and Hugh Cowan, our research manager, and they believe
some time during the second half of November would be a good time for your visit. Perhaps you could organize

some tentative dates and then we can confirm arrangements? Let me know your thoughts.

Kind regards,

--—-—0Original Message-----

ron: F
Sent: Friday, October 08, 2010 2:51 PM

To:
Subject: Re: EQC Visit

Thanks much,-(a)

Sent from my iPhone

On Oct 7, 2010, at 8:48 PM, _cjoch.govt.nz<mai|to‘:>EQc.govt.nz>> wrote:
Hi Sl

Very nice to talk to you. Will be in touch next week once I've had a chance to talk to lan Simpson (CEO) anc-)
SR - . vo. v to v

Kind regards,

o0 )

13
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O -

From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Wednesday, 20 October 2010 11:12 am.
To:

Subject: RE: TV One News

Phew! That is some task list you have compiled, ‘:Qayaanks for your effort ongoing. regards Hugh

-=- original message ---

oo .
Subject: RE: TV One News

Date: 19th October 2010

Time: 6:01:55 pm

ThanksEliEll=)

I didn't see the news, so may have to follow your suggested link to TV On Demand.

Thanks also for the offer of a link to the GETS parties, but | think I'll avoid getting bogged down in that and leave it to
Fletcher's resource machine to handle that.

Catching up with of DBH today to get an update on their progress around streamlining the
consenting process (with Fof the FCC team), ahead of a DBH organised session with the 3 Council

consenting leads and the PMO next Thursday.

-advises that he expects the MoU to be signed with Fletchers today. Also that PMO construction and PI/PL
insurance discussions are progressing. Hope to be updated on that later today.

Fletchers have a list of 100 homes and have realised that the assessors’
definition of work isn't enough for them to get prices, so their first thoughts are to arrange scopes suitable for
prices. Integrating with-la)make sure this is streamlined.

When SIFSIETIIN s back in town next week will start working with him and lfllem)a range of setup tasks.
Current check list includes:

Commitment Approvals

- Scoping - who does QS v Architect, who approves?- managing
expectations

Pricing
21
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- Comparison with EQC assessment

- Packaging and approval

- Operating near the $100,000 limit

Scope Management

- Identifying departures from agreed scope
Mechanism for sign-off

- Approaching the $100,000 limit

Consenting process and sign-off

- Agree streamlined process with Councils - one process for all
3 Councils

. PMO engaged designers to document and inspect
- Record keeping of inspections

- Audit process

- Subsequent approval and records transfer to TA's
Reporting

- Tracking claims, properties assessed, starts and completes
= Forecasting total numbers, costs, completion
Governance framework

- Meeting cycles

- Agenda

- Participants

EECA interface

- Key points of contact

= How do we interface - integrated or completely separate work
streams?

Data transfer
- What do FCC require
- What is confidential to EQC/Claimants

- Transfer mechanisms
22
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PMO Construction Insurances

All risks - impact of subsequent shakes
- Pl

PL
Forms of contract for physical works

Delegated authority limits

Cheers

Confidentiality:

The information in this email (including any attachments) may be privileged & confidential. Any unauthorised use is
expressly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please advise immediately & delete this
email.

_{mai!to:mmedgovt.nz]
Sent: Wednesday, 20 October :52 a.m.
To:

Cc: Hugh Cowan
Subject: TV One News

From

23
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HileEl 2

l(jagt a note, to say you looked very authoritative in your meeting shot on the news last night!

The media response to the building repair activity seems very positive from what we can tell in Wellington.

Btw as of yesterday, 815 people had downioaded the Fletchers ad from GETS -.(@n give you a list of who they
were if you want it. The GETS advert directs them to the Fletchers web site, so there is not action beyond what
Fletchers are doing normally, its just through GETS we can track things.

Regards

newzealand.govt.nz - connecting you to New Zealand central & local government services

not the intended recipient or the Person responsible for delivery to the intended recipient, be advised that you have
received this message in error and that any use is strictly prohibited. Please contact the sender and delete the
message and any attachment from your computer.

24
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 3:51 p.m.
To:

Subject: FWD: a quick note, and catch up
Attachments: a quick note, and catch up

BB 55 discussed. | also sent it on to lan earlier. Cheers Hugh

24
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From:

Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 2:35 p.m.
To: Hugh Cowan

Subject: a quick note, and catch up

Hi Hugh

Appreciate that you must be frantic at the moment, but | promised to pass this message on to you. | have a large
extended family in Christchurch, hence we spent our school holidays in CHCH, and while none of the immediate
family have suffered any significant damage, one extended family is one of those waiting for the geotech reports
before they know if they can rebuild their house. Given the focus of the last few days especially on a few disgruntled
residents, | thought you should know that my families experience has been the total opposite. The most affected in
our family have been very impressed with the responsiveness, compassion, and thoroughness of the EQC and
council representatives that they have been involved with, as well as the utility and service providers who have
provided services and help unsolicited (or solicited by EQC and council people) and with no expectation of being
paid. They are also very complementary about the flow of information and timeframes for the assessments to date.

Also, my parents and friends also asked me to pass on how impressed they have been with geonet, and how useful
it has been with understanding what has been happening. They have also been particularly impressed that the data
from geonet has been accessible by other parties to develop various interpretations, such as the aftershock maps
etc.

So well done to all at EQC, some may be quite vocal about perceived deficiencies, but many do really appreciate the
hard work you must all be putting in and that it is a time of high stress for EQC staff.

On another note, can | drag you away for a coffee sometime? no strings

Regards
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O —

From: Hugh Cowan
Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 2:54 p.m.

To: —
Subject: RE: a quick note, and catch up

Hi -a}anks for passing on these comments. | have passed them to lan as | am sure he will appreciate this and
also because | have escaped for a few days for meetings with our reinsurance brokers in Chicago. | will call you in
early Nov. Glad to catch up then. Hugh

--- original message ---

From:'

Subject: a quick note, and catch up
Date: 20th October 2010

Time: 8:35:02 pm

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

Also, my parents and friends also asked me to pass on how impressed they have been with geonet, and how usefu!
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

-
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oo @

From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 2:47 p.m.
To: Ian Simpson

Subject: FWD: a quick note, and catch up
Attachments: a quick note, and catch up

lan, thought | would pass this on to you. Fyi, Eifilljiap former senior manger Sl EHENIINEEEEEEEEE <:: s,

Hugh

25
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PO _

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

O 2

From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 12:04 p.m.
To:

Subject: RE: CAE

By the way, it is CEA, not CAE. :)

--- original message ---
From: ' ”g;c.govt.nz:\-
Subject: CAE

Date: 20th October 2010

Time: 5:49:19 pm

Great, thanks.

-----0riginal Message-----

From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 11:48 a.m.
To:

Subject: RE: Guy Fawkes function

Ok, then see if they can go to GNS plus meet with together, to get overview of disaster preparedness
arrangements in NZ, Perhaps | can accompany them to keep messages relevant.

--- griginal message ---

From: '_" mggqc.govt.nz';
Subject: RE: Guy Fawkes function

Date: 20th October 2010

Time: 5:29:10 pm

Can't do that because we've told them to come here for first two days and then go on to Christchurch. They won't
be coming back here. Any other thoughts?

--—-Original Message-----

From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 11:17 a.m.
To:

Subject: RE: Guy Fawkes function

Yes, we could send them out to GeoNet and they would better appreciate our mandate and community profile. |
agree Public Policy is important, | am always looking for those connections, the challenge is finding anything more
than the opinion of individuals. In this sense it could be beneficial for us if they were to meet _ together
at EQC, AFTER they have been to Chch and net insurers etc. This way, [EIjSIIESHEN would learn too via the visitors
perspective. What do you think?

--- original message ---

From: 'F' #B@eqc govt.nz>
Subject: RE: Guy Fawkes function

Date: 20th October 2010
Time: 5:06:29 pm

14



Getting back to CAE's visit - We{GASER HEEb%FhHH‘?bQE{J%?HQE%”&%’%‘E £1r1e§|3$13 %Vellington because we haven't

the time to entertain them the whole time. As well as insurance they want to talk about public policy - do you think
ring EIEIEIE | know they're mainly interested in insurance but what about a tour of GNS and GeoNet?
Grateful for your thoughts.

Have sent you a copy of my response to[jjilla)
() 2) B

--—-—0riginal Message---—-

From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 9:05 a.m.
To:

Subject: RE: Guy Fawkes function

Thanks_
eautitut atternoon in Chicago, i.e. sunny weather. Hope yours has improved! Hugh

--- original message --- -
From: 'EIEHENI EBE@eoc.covt.nz>
Subject: RE: Guy Fawkes function

Date: 20th October 2010

Time: 2:53:58 pm

I will deal with Sl 4iugh.

-----0riginal Message-----

From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 1:06 a.m.
To:

Subject: FWD: Guy Fawkes function

What did you tell me? :) i am of two minds how to deal with this but my better nature is to squeeze him in if we can.
Did you put tickets aside for me? That would be 5 if required. :)

15
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c2E — —

From: Hugh Cowan
Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 11:18 a.m.

To:

Subject: RE: Response to-)

Great response- thanks a lot. Hugh

--- original message ---
From: ﬂ' mgqc.govt.np
)

Subject: Response to
Date: 20th October 2010
Time: 5:06:49 pm

From:

Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 11:03 a.m.
To:

Subject: RE: Guy Fawkes function

Hi N2 )

Sorry you were excluded from our list this year. I'm afraid because of the pressure of work caused by the
Canterbury earthquake, Guy Fawkes was the last thing on anyone’s mind. However, because the venue was booked
and we had a huge number of extra people helping us and putting in extra hours, we decided to go ahead and make
it an occasion more for the people who were on site and helping. Because we had to limit numbers, some of the
regulars had to be excluded, and because we were running short on time this may not have been done with as much
thought as it should. Please do not take this personally.

Regards

| Earthquake Commission (EQC)

Majestic Centre | 100 Willis Street | P O Box 790 | Wellington

Phone: N - - o'

18
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 1:20 a.m.
To:
Subject: RE: CEA Visit

HilSTREIMEEN, sorry for delay reilying to this. Unless you have already called them, | would skip EIESIESI and just

focus on insurance. and in Chch EIEIE AMI.

--- original message ---
From: " ' SIl@eqc.govt.nz>
Subject: CEA Visit

Date: 18th October 2010

Time: 8:35:32 pm

Hi Hugh, spoke to CEO and Director of Claims of the CEA today. They stressed that they didn’t want to
inconvenience us in any way and add to our work load but | said we’d be happy to arrange the meetings for them. |
know _)IS more than happy to do so in Christchurch. They said they were particularly interested in the
insurance side of things — claims/legal/financial/reinsurance/public policy/media/ - and even maybe talking to
policyholders.

So with that in mind, who do you think | should make appointments with? Internally RO(2)(a) | lan, SIENENN
you?.j_{ar)yone else?

And externally - Do you still think | should ring [SIJEJllElll and ask him to suggest anyone else in his department? -

also ST of McoEM ? EIENENIM rom Insurance Council? — What about{SENENIE for legal? Anyone

external for reinsurance?

- suggested programme for Christchurch is:

Travel to Christchurch — NZ433 — departing Wn 8.40, arriving Chc 9.25
10.00 Briefing

Tour around Response Office

Lunch

Meeting with Tonkin & Taylor

Meeting with Christchurch City

Visit to Kaiapoi site with engineers

Meet with Waimakariri and Selwyn Mayors

Dinner

18 November
19



Released under the Official Information Act 1982

Meeting with Fletchers — project management
AMI

Ports of Lyttelton

Darlington area — Fletcher hub

Lunch

Debrief

End 3pm

I think he wants to include_or someone like that as well. (Very enthusiastic is our -)

Please let me have your thoughts and advice.

Thanks

20
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Friday, 22 October 2010 4:11 p.m.
To:

Subject: RE:T & T report

HilgliEl (always good to hear from you. My trip going well so far. Great to catch up with Sl 2nd my talk
at IRIS was well received. Also very useful meetings with NSF and FEMA. In Chicago good meetings with our brokers.

All very impressed with quality of GeoNet data. Regards to T&T report my guess is that oversight merely reflects
extreme time pressure and, as you suggest, familiarity (breeds contempt) although surely not intended. 1 suggest
however you mention to [§jillffegently, the reminder to 'look out' for our interests. )

--- original message ---

From: '_' < ns.cri.nz>

Subject: T & T report
Date: 21st October 2010
Time: 5:56:49 pm

Hi Hugh
Hope your travels are going well.

Interesting to note the Tonkin & Taylor report (just released) makes extensive use of GeoNet data and information
(and some GNS Science also), but at the end where the report lists references and other sources of information
there is no mention of GeoNet or GNS Science. It could even be seen as "flattering”, as any mention of GeoNet is
done in a similar way as one might mention the Fire Service or Police! Perhaps this is an indication that GeoNet is
now just taken as a part of New Zealand life.

Cheers, Bll)(a)

!!! !c;ence -Te Pu Ao

DDI:

1 Fairway Drive, P.O. Box 30-368 Lower Hutt New Zealand

Notice: This email and any attachments are confidential. If received in error please destroy and immediately notify
us. Do not copy or disclose the contents.
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Friday, 22 October 2010 11:34 a.m.
To: @ MED

Subject: RE: 2 things

Hi [liEllk i note, could you call

and ask him to clarify if he can.

national geodetic office at LINZ and it was he who originally approached me about reestablishing survey control in
areas of land damage. If [N cant help then | suggest you call TN 2t MCDEM. YN kyows a lot about

spatial data availability post quake. Cheers Hugh

--- original message ---

From: 'EIENEVEENR <SG med govt.nz>

Subject: 2 things '

Date: 21st October 2010

Time: 5:20:03 pm

Sorry, just realised, in my e-mail below, by tonight | mean Friday night!

Also there is a note on your desk:

22 October - 8.50am

From ST

Referred to him from Linz - SiS§ifSYMMM e spacial data for Christchurch
Asking you to give him a call on*

Do you want me to pass this on to someone?

Regards

o2\ 3

-——0riginal Message-----

From:

Sent: Friday, 22 October 2010 11:05 a.m.
To: 'Hugh Cowan'

Subject: Blues Club

Importance: High

Hi Hugh,
| reckon this was the place -

http://www.kingstonmines.com/flash/main.html|

And funnily enough one of the bands | saw (which was great) is playing there tonight and tomorrow.

http://www.bigjames.com/index.htm
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By the way, it was a great night out, but the area was a bit rough - | mean rough in a non-New Zealand kind of way
(will make Naenae look like Seatoun), so recommend you order a Cab back. From memory the food was pretty good
and if they still do them the ice buckets filled with beers went down well.

Enjoy, regards

5(2) (2

-----Original Message-----

From: Hugh Cowan [mailto:hacowan@eqc.govt.nz]
Sent: Friday, 22 October 2010 9:35 a.m.

To:

Subject: RE: CE001 - PM

Thanks, BBl $b you cant remember, so it must have been a unique experience! :)

--- original message ---

From: 'F' EIENE > e govt.nz>
Subject: RE: CEO01 - PM

Date: 21st October 2010
Time: 3:20:15 pm

Hi Hugh,
Glad it's going well.

Make sure you find a good blues club in Chicago, it was one of the best nights out I've ever had - pity | can't
remember the name of the club - but sure the hotels or that guide book will have some details.

All is fine here as far as | can tell, Fletchers seem to be cracking on and doing well, Ministers seem happy and most
people seem focussed on Land Remediation issues than our bit - there are no significant queries coming though -
which says to me, they're all confident that we can be left alone now to get on and deliver. So stage 1 accomplished.

Catch you when you get back.

.

From: Hugh Cowan [mailto:hacowan@eqc.govt.nz]
Sent: Friday, 22 October 2010 9:08 a.m.

To:

Subject: RE: CE001 - PM

Thanks, S &4y trip is going well. Productive meetings without exception so far. With Y@M 902y meeting loss
modeling experts at Aon.
Even met an old acquaintence on 'our’ team, from my days in Latin America. Small world. Cheers Hugh

--- original message ---

From: @med.govt.nz>
Subject: RE: CE001 - PM

Date: 21st October 2010

Time: 2:59:20 pm

No worries, being dealt with.
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---—-Original Message-----

From: Hugh Cowan [mailto:hacowan@eqc.govt.nz]
Sent: Friday, 22 October 2010 8:05 a.m.

To:

Subject: FWD: CEQ01 - PM

Hifflillerateful if you would acknowledge this in my absence. Cheers Hugh

This email message (along with any attachments) is intended only for the

addressee(s) hamed above.

The information contained in this email is confidential to the New Zealand Earthquake Commission (EQC)and must
not be used, reproduced or passed on without consent.

If you have received this email in error, informing EQC by return email or by calling (04)978 6400 should ensure the
error is not repeated.

Please delete this email if you are not the intended addressee.

newzealand.govt.nz - connecting you to New Zealand central & local government services

Any opinions expressed in this message are not necessarily those of the Ministry of Economic Development. This
message and any files transmitted with it are confidential and solely for the use of the intended recipient. If you are
not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivery to the intended recipient, be advised that you have
received this message in error and that any use is strictly prohibited. Please contact the sender and delete the
message and any attachment from your computer.

This email message (along with any attachments) is intended only for the

addressee(s) named above.

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

addressee(s) named above,
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
To. EETE -

Subject: RE: CEQOL - PM

Thanks,-a'_\}ly trip is going well. Productive meetings without exception so far. With Eljijilftpday meeting loss
modeling experts at Aon. Even met an old acquaintence on 'our' team, from my days in Latin America. Small world.
Cheers Hugh

--- original message ---

From: 'ElEIENIN FIENEN > ed govt.nz>
Subject: RE: CE001 - PM

Date: 21st October 2010

Time: 2:59:20 pm

No worries, being dealt with.

---—QOriginal Message-----

From: Hugh Cowan [mailto:hacowan@eqc.govt.nz]
Sent: Friday, 22 October 2010 8:05 a.m.

To

Subject: FWD: CEOO1 - PM

Hi (Sl gvateful if you would acknowledge this in my absence. Cheers Hugh

This email message (along with any attachments) is intended only for the addressee(s) named above.

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
To: *@ MED

Subject: FWD: CE001 - PM

Attachments: CE001 - PM

-grateful if you would acknowledge this in my absence. Cheers Hugh
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From: P

Sent: Thursday, 21 October 2010 4:57 p.m.
To: Hugh Cowan
Subject: CEQO1 - PM

Attachments: Attachment withheld und SiEcIseaIgy

Hugh,

Attache-invoice for bid evaluation woek

Please do not hesitate to contact me if we can be of further assistance

kind regards

Please consider the environment before printing this email This email and any files transmitted with it are

confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have
received this email in error please noti

This email has been scanned by the MessageLabs Email Security System.
For more information please visit http://www.messagelabs.com/email
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Friday, 2 er 2010 4:16 p.m.
To:

Subject: RE: Deep Fault Drilling Project update

Hi-qut to confirm that | will be pleased to meet on my return. Also, | recently enjoyed meeting a Stanford
contemporary of yours, - at NSF. See you soon. Hugh

- original message ---

Subject: Deep Fault Drilling Project update
Date: 21st October 2010
Time: 9:35:48 pm

Dear DFDP colleagues,

Since we distributed the second Deep Fault Drilling Project, Alpine Fault, newsletter in early September, there have
been several exciting developments regarding DFDP that we would like to bring to your attention.

Royal Society of New Zealand Marsden Fund support for two DFDP-related proposals Late last month, the Royal
Society of New Zealand announced Marsden Fund support totalling NZ$920k for a 1.5 km Alpi Fault borehole
("DFDP-2"). The proposal was submitted by ﬁ(GNS Science) andﬂ{\/ictoria University
of Wellington) on behalf of colleagues at seven organisations. Separate Marsden funding of NZ$300k for a fault

zone guided wave study at Gaunt Creek led by (University of Auckland) was announced at the same
time.

Science, the University of Bremen, the National Environmental Research Council (UK, via the University of Liverpool),

designed and used to full scientific advantage. With that in mind, preparations are being made for an application to
ICDP in mid-January for additional funding; that application will need to contain technical plans and pricing
information, and a draft will be completed by early December and the AGU Fall Meeting.

Input from researchers interested in contributing to DFDP-2 planning is very welcome, and we would particularly
€ncourage researchers outside New Zealand to consider submitting (or resubmitting!) proposals to local/national

funding agencies in Support of the project. Researchers interested in iathe DFDP-2 project should
contact Rupert Suther or—

as soon as possible,

Best wishes; enjoy the weekend,



BRI ;- 5esasashyngier the Official Information Act 1982

School of Geography,
6140 New Zealand

Environment, and Earth Sciences Victoria University of Wellington P.0. Box 600 Wellington
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Saturday, 23 October 2010 7:02 p.m.

To:

Subject: RE: EAG Letters of Engagement

Hi arknowledging your email from Chicago. Glad to hear things are progressing well. | have not had time to

have also drawn up a provisional supplementary budget for my areas of responsibility for board approval, against

—- original message ---

rrom: NN I
Subject: RE: EAG Letters of ngagement

Date: 22nd October 2010
Time: 10:06:15 pm

Apologies, Hugh - | forgot to attach the overall budget spreadsheet

o S - S
Sent: Saturday, 23 October 20 :03

To: Hugh Cowan (hacowan@eqc.govt.nz)
Subject: EAG Letters of Engagement

Hugh

Further to my earlier email, and with apologies for bothering you with more
detail, I'm also belatedly working on the letters of engagement for the FAG
members, as we hopefully cover off the liability issues.

Attached is an updated draft of my letter of acceptance of your original
letter, covering off the wider budget of the Group (greater than originally
estimated, including my time inputs); a further developed terms of reference
for the Group (which | propose to incorporate within the individual

letters), and a draft letter to each of the consulting members of the Group.

These letters can't be completed as yet until the liability issues are fully
covered off, | need to get these out by the end of this week to enable
invoicing by 31 October.

As you will still be away at this time, who would you wish to be approving
and signing on your behalf?

Many thanks

o))
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Sunday. 24 October 2010 12:44 p.m.
To:

Subject: RE: DARFIELD EQ Catch up asac

HiElEMBhanks for the update. | am still abroad and will be back in office 1 Nov. Only blackberry for now so wont
elaborate but happy to catch up on return. You could liaise with _and set a time. Cheers hugh

=-- original message ---
From:' f

Subject: DARFIELD EQ Catc up asac

Date: 23rd October 2010
Time: 6:22:34 pm

Hugh
It has been a couple of weeks since we talked. Where in the world are you now? Back home?

I am having a week off from MCDEM matters, including MCDEM e-mails and telecoms. | return to work Fri pm.
However, I'm at home on NZSEE matters and am available through the e-mail and phone number below.

For you information | have put some time (days) into helping T+T (_ reconcile the T+T
Stage | Report with the NZ GEER _) report. | reviewed both last weekend.

From interactions with T+T it emerged they think they can't use the 'restricted - not-for-profit' post eq remote
sensing images/data (GeoEye, High Res ms verticals, LiDAR, and the Pre- Post- dLiDAR). Because of my negotiations
with NZAM, AAM, and NZDF, I can help resolve this as from the NCMC I ensured the imagery was acquired to assjst
both Response and Recovery. Resonable (not-for-profit) conditions apply.

Last Fri 15 I had catch ups variously with EQC (lan,_, and wit_ and

Can you and | have a catch up, at your convenience?

0(2)(

21
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Wednesday, 27 October 2010 4:03 p.m.
To:

Subject: RE: NZSEE

Hi -a)am at the tail end of a US trip and back in office next Monday. Will catch up for a coffee soon. Cheers
Hugh

--- original message ---
Subject: NZSEE

Date: 26th October 2010
Time: 8:46:13 pm

Greeting Hugh
While | appreciate that you have undoubtadly been totally consumed by the events in Christchurch, | felt it
appropriate to catch up on progress for an NZSEE tour and the preparation of appropriate papers for the NZSEE

journal.

Please advise if | can be of any assistance in achieving these outcomes prior to Christmas.

Regards

)

SpencerHolmes Limited

PO Box 588, Wellington 6140

Level 6, 8 Willis Street, Wellington 6011

ETETETM <. it S
www.spencerholmes.co.nz <http://www.spencerholmes.co.nz/>

looe Moo |
Please consider the environment before printing this email.

17
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Wednesday, 27 October 2010 12:51 p.m.
To:
Subject: RE: Engineering Advisory Group for Canterbury event

Hi, and thanks for the reassurance! | will show up for work, dont worry :)

--- original message ---

From: " : m c.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: Engineering Advisory Group for Canterbury event
Date: 26th October 2010

Time: 5:25:45 pm

Your phone must be on US time - your calendar in the office shows Monday, 1 November. Get plenty of rest and
sleep in the weekend and shake off any cold that might be coming on because things are pretty full on here and you
won't be allowed to stay away!! -P:)

19
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o @

From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Wednesday, 27 October 2010 12:20 p.m.

To:

Subject: RE: Engineering Advisory Group for Canterbury event

Hi - just checking on the timing of a meeting of the Engineers advisory group. It appears on my phone as
Sunday 31 Oct. Is that correct? Seems unusual. Is all ok? If correct, could you please letmg\y. Thanks :)

--- original message ---

From:" c.govt.nz>

Subject: Engineering Advisory Group for Canterbury event
Date: 26th October 2010

Time: 5:03:10 pm

Hi I )
Further to my telephone call, | attach:

Hugh’s letter to EIENIENIEN
T ——

Suggested letter to prospective consultant members of group

Suggested Terms of Reference
s said that although it’s not crucial to get the letter out to the prospective members immediately, he’d like

to be able to give them some assurance on terms of engagement on Friday, which includes something in respect of
waiving liability.

We'd appreciate your advice.

Regards

_l Earthquake Commission (EQC)

Majestic Centre | 100 Willis Street | P O Box 790 | Wellington

20
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PO - - . —

From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Thursday, 28 October 2010 5:27 p.m.

To: *

Subject: FWD: RE: Reminder: Working group 2 teleconference (Community Resil ience
3-4pm today - Thursday 28 Oct)

Attachments: RE: Reminder: Working group 2 teleconference (Community Resilience 3-4pm today
- Thursday 28 Oct)

Hi SRR ! am not sure if you are on this mailing list but the cover note reference to risk communication and
affected communities caught my eye. I have not attem pted to open the attachment. Regards Hugh



Released under the Official Information Act 1982

From:
Sent: Thursday, 28 October 2010 12:17 p.m.
To: :
Hugh Cowan;
Subject: RE: Reminder: Working group 2 teleconference (Community Resilience 3-4pm today
- Thursday 28 Oct)
Attachments: Responses notes.doc
Hi all,

Draft results of my in-depth, qualitative interviews and observations with individuals and community groups in
Avonside, Richmond, Bexley and Halswell attached...These results are still very rough so keep that caution in

mind. Be very interested in hearing what others have found.

Heaps of more contentious stuff not included here about poor communication; differences in the experiences of HNZ,
owners and tenants; and upcoming challenges around remediation and future land uses. Also, varied 'resilience’
across the different neighbourhoods.

Will try to dial in today.

Regards,

BE =)
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Faculty of Environment, Society and Design
PO Box &4

Lincofn University 7647
Christchurch, New Zealand

o -

w www.lincoln.ac.nz

Lincoln University, Te Whare Wanaka o Aoraki
New Zealuvnd’s Specielist Lond Based University

From:

Sent: Thursday, 28 October 2010 10:11 a.m.
To:_AcOwan@eqc.gow.nZ:

Subject: RE: Reminder: Working group 2 teleconference (Community Resilience 3-4pm today - Thursday 28 Oct)
HiElEl =)

Are we part of this group? | am just a bit confused about how it works.

Also, could you please email me the spreadsheet of ChCh earthquake research projects.

Cheers

0(2) B
gns.cri.nz]

From:EIENENEN [mailtoﬁ@
Sent: Thursday, 28 October 2010 9:00 a.m.

HACowan@eqc.govt.nz;



Subject: Reminder: Working group 2 teleconference (Community Resilience 3-4pm today - Thursday 28 Oct)

Canterbury Earthquake: Social science research

Just a reminder that there will be a catch-up for Working Group 2 (Community Resilience) today at 3-4 pm via
teleconference.

Basic adgenda
1. Update on research currently underway (or proposed)
2. Undate from those in Canterbury

Instructions for dialling in are:

Dial the access number: 08 30 33
Put in the pin:

Regards
RYae

GNS Science

1 Fairway Drive, Avalon

PO Box 30368

Lower Hutt

New Zealand
http://'www.gns.cri.nz/services/hazardsplanning/

Ph:
M attachments are confidential. If received in error please destroy and immediately notify us. Do not copy or disclose the

contents.
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Christchurch Residents’ Responses to the Christchurch Earthquake:
Draft Notes _ Lincoln University)

‘Reaction’

Pre-cognisant:

Screaming, running blindly...

‘I just held on for dear life’

‘Somehow I was on my feet and running’

Semi-cognisant:

‘He [husband] could have been dead on the floor but I would have stood on him
trying to get to Nell [daughter]’.

‘I was somehow awake and on my way to the kids room before I even knew what was
happening, but I couldn’t walk properly’

‘I tried to get to a doorframe but the dogs were in the way. Lucky I didn’t get there
because it was a glass door with the big glass windows right beside it’.

Cognisant
‘I knew straight away it was an earthquake and tried to crawl to the doorframe but

couldn’t’.
‘I just stayed in bed and held her [girlfriend]’
‘I didn’t move, I just waited to see if I could hear the house falling’.

‘Response’ part a (4.37-4.40am)

Those without electricity hunted for a torch or cell phone (as a light source)

‘Got some clothes on’

‘Got under a table’

‘Went to the doorframe’

‘Lay there wondering what to do, listening’

‘Ran outside, then ran in again. Then out again. I didn’t know what to do’.
‘Stayed inside’ because they were near the river and heard water running outside.
Those who had other people or pets in the house checked on them.

‘Response’ part b (4.40-daylight)

Not badly affected

First-aid

Left because they were scared of a tsunami

Called friends and family

‘Checked the house’

‘Found the dog’

Went outside and sat in the car or talked with neighbours
Had breakfast.

A surprising number (mostly men) went back to sleep.

Badly affected

‘Scrambled’ to find a safe place, who to call, ‘what the hell is liquefaction and is it
dangerous’.

How bad is this? Are we (and surrounding neighbours) better or worse off? Who will
help us? Who do we call (and how)?

Can we stay here? Is it safe? Will it get worse? Will the ground just swallow us up?

_Lincoln University, e: 'lincoln.ac.nz

p:
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Saturday

Cleaned up the mess — some messes just ‘too big to handle’.

Checked the house

Went to see or stay with friends or family

Went out looking around the neighbourhood

Tried to get supplies (water)

Tried to find out what to ‘do’ via cell phone or neighbours (those with no power),
radio or television (‘do’= get water, go to the toilet, cook)

Pulled chimneys down (and other minor repairs)

Sunday onwards, Two groups: a) those who suffered little damage and b) those who
still face on-going problems.

Group A: Little Damage
Almost feel they are almost ‘back to normal’. They rarely - if ever - check geonet,
have stopped ‘planning’ for earthquakes and are starting to raid their emergency kits.

Another smaller mostly female group are still very anxious; they cannot sleep or
refuse to sleep in their own homes and hate being alone. Only one person had called
the helpline (about her 3 year old daughter’s behaviour). There does not seem to be a
clear relationship degree of damage to home (or person) and anxiety levels. Some of
those who suffered no ostensible damage still feel very scared but also guilty about
wanting help because they think others have lost much more.

Group B: Physically (house, infrastructure or personal injury) affected.
Waiting patiently
Waiting impatiently

‘Can’t leave, but can’t stay either’.

Organising and participating in communal response*

* This is forming the next stage of my research — far more controversial and less
easily analysed. I’'m currently working with community groups and individuals in
Avonside, Richmond, Halswell and Bexley, conducting on-site, in-depth interviews
(and possibly a focus group), attending group meetings etc.

Analysis

Preparedness

There is a very large difference between ‘preparedness’ and ‘being prepared’.

Hardly anyone had a fully stocked emergency kit + papers and documents + food and
water for 3 days BUT people were very resourceful, using cell phones as a torch and
camping equipment to boil water and cook. The most common preparedness
adaptations are storing water and getting a working torch and radio.

Many have not prepared an emergency kit and do not intend to because a) the EQ
actually confirmed they can cope quite well for a couple of days or b) if it was so bad
they couldn’t cope for a couple of days they would ‘need a gun rather than an
emergency kit’.

_Lincoln University, e:-@lincoln.ac.nz
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Risks

Physical harm (e.g. chimneys) from EQ damage. Many spent the week after the EQ
repairing minor damage with dismantling chimneys and getting doors and windows to
shut/lock being the most common concerns.

Health (contamination). Advice about boiling the water did not get through in a timely
fashion or in a way that made sense (for how long or how to boil water for three
minutes when the jug switches off automatically). Advice about not flushing toilets
was often simply ignored. People were happy so long as ‘it disappeared. Another
sometimes overlooked health hazard arose when people were clearing contaminated
silt and soil.

Well-being. There seems to be little relationship between degree to which people
were affected in a tangible way (injury, damage to house) and levels of anxiety. Some
who have been very badly affected (especially in terms of property) are showing
incredible levels of resilience and innovation. Others are suffering badly with
uncertainty around remediation, communication with council and EQC, ongoing
health and infrastructure issues causing severe anxiety (despite some very brave
appearances). Difficult for lay-people to understand geotech reports and the
implications it has for them personally.

More positively, many report improved neighbourly relationships.

Communication. Those badly affected have been given little information that they can
use or understand, misinformation and sometimes even conflicting information! This
problem has become an important part of the second stage of my research with
residents in badly affected areas. The way information is delivered, as well as the
content of the information is important.

Conclusions

Add rubber gloves and masks to standard emergency kits (they double up anyway for
first aid and flu). Add plastic bags (for faeces) to the list or suggest emergency kit
items are kept in sealable bucket which can double as a toilet if you don’t have a back
yard to dig a hole in. Advice about ‘what to do with your poo’ was inadequate. People
would be more likely to use a port-a-loo if it were ‘theirs’ rather than out on the road
with ‘100 other bums on it’. Peg reminders to restock kits with daylight savings
advertisements (much like the firs alarms).

Work with 2 degrees, Vodafone, telecom and other mobile companies to see if people
can register for ‘alerts’, tsunami warnings and emergency updates.

‘Triangle of life’ versus ‘stop drop and hold’? The ‘triangle of life’ has too much
traction. Why should we just ‘stop drop and hold’?

Some information is best delivered face-to-face and people are relying on word or
mouth rather than websites for some news. Port-a-loo drivers are dispensing advice to
those in sewerage-affected areas along the lines of ‘if it’s not bubbling up in your
lawn, use your own toilet’. Minimally these drivers could be briefed to provide more
useful — or at least not dangerous - advice. Generally, the content and complexity of
each message should determine the means of its transmission. Neighbourhood

_Lincoln University, e:-@lincoln.ac.nz
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meetings appear to be working very well, but their success depends on the will and
commitment of both residents and experts.

With appropriate caveats about liability, publish a list of signs to look for to see if a
structural engineer should look over a house (particularly re shifting on, or cracking
of, foundations). There is a sense that others are ‘worse off” so people are just waiting
to call an engineer or EQC; “Who should I call? An engineer from the yellow pages?’.
Some others are worrying needlessly about superficial cracking. References to a
website may not be the ideal way to convey this information. Again, neighbourhood
level meetings might be more costly, but more cost-effective in the long-term.

Connecting recovery and development.

Connect recovery with long-term risk avoidance: Some areas, though structurally
sound, are marginal in terms of marketability. This combined with the likelihood of
another earthquake or tsunami should inform decision-making.

Build cultural capital. Exemptions from building consent have shown some of these to
have been unnecessary in the first place. Many people were perfectly capable of
taking down their own chimneys and it was fortunate that we have remnants of a DIY
culture in place. Similarly, our fondness for outdoor recreation and camping provided
an abundance of experience such as being without electricity and cooking on a gas
cooker or bbq.

First-point of contact outside the home was usually neighbours. Build ‘community
spirit’ before it is needed. Build on and strengthen the goodwill built at
neighbourhood level (rather than, or in conjunction with, city-wide strategies). Public
recognition (if not appeasement) of the wishes of newly-formed community groups
may serve longer-term aspirations around community involvement and broad
participation as well.

People forget fast — it is has to be someone’s job to remember. CDEM have been very
good in many ways but the recovery process could align better with longer-term
strategies such as the GCUDS, the city’s revitalisation programme and LTCCPs. The
‘chimneys to low-pollution heaters’ is a good initiative (though it raises important
questions about the resilience of what, to what) and there will be other opportunities
along these lines. City planners and staff members of the planning school (at Lincoln
University for example) are already familiar with many of these issues and there are
many opportunities there for collaboration (student projects, knowledge of overseas
trends, student labour!).

Resilience of what to what? As in the example above of connecting the removal of
chimneys to low-pollution heaters, sometimes ‘specified resilience’ comes at a cost of
‘general resilience’: widespread conversion to heat pumps, for example, would be an
absolute disaster under the conditions of massive infrastructural failure mid-winter.
The connections between specified and general resilience need to be understood
better.

Some people are not going to able to move on from this for a very long time, if ever.
Long-term recovery strategies, particularly for those in affected areas, have to be

_Lincoln University, e: 'lincoln.ac.nz
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developed collaboratively with people in those areas. Many already feel that the rest
of the city is fixed whilst they still battle for basic services and facilities.

Other issues:
Housing New Zealand clients, tenants, elderly and those with children face additional

problems. Those who now face 2 or more years of uncertainty and
reconstruction/remediation face a range of extra problems as well.

B o University, c: -@nncoln.ac.nz

p:
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Thursday, 28 October 2010 2:09 p.m.
To: George Hooper

Subject: RE: FW: EAG Timeline (hugh)

Thanks for the update George, and for your help around this. | would like to think that this issue partly arises from a
misunderstanding of the role that EQC must play in order to get certain things done, for itself and for the wider
community. Wish you a safe trip. Hugh

--- original message ---

From: "George Hooper" SIENENTGEG

Subject: FW: EAG Timeline (hugh)

Date: 27th October 2010

Time: 5:26:43 pm

Hugh,

We can discuss when you get back

Bets regards
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George

Recovery Liaison

NZ Earthquake Commission

From: George Hooper [mailto

Sent: Thursday, 28 October 2010 12:10 p.m.
To:
Cc: 'Hugh Cowan'
Subject: FW: EAG Timeline

Sincerely

Recovery Liaison
10



Released under the Official Information Act 1982

From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Thursday, 28 October 2010 5:41 p.m.
To:
Subject: RE: IOF 1st Quarter Report

HiEIEENIEN ' am in the US and back in my office next Monday. | am happy to accept the report as a basis for
invoicing of completed milestones but I cannot easily read it on my phone. Cheers Hugh

--- original message ---

From: " " <mgw>
Subject: IOF 1st Quarter Report

Date: 27th October 2010

Time: 10:33:31 pm

Hi Hugh -

Please find attached a draft IOF 1st quarter report, for your review - sorry for the delay in getting it to you.
I would ideally like to send the associated invoices out tomorrow (i.e.

before end of October) - please can you confirm whether you are happy for me to do so?

Many thanks,

GNS Science

PO Box 30368, Lower Hutt 5040, New Zealand

- SN SR

WWW.ENS.Cri.nz

Notice: This email and any attachments are confidential. If received in error please destroy and immediately notify

us. Do not copy or disclose the contents.
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Thursday, 28 October 2010 11:35 a.m.
To: Reception3

Subject: RE: Msg from“at Conferenz

Hi, | will be in my office next monday and will respond at that time. Thanks, hugh
--- original message ---

From: “_" egc.govt.nz>

Subject: Msg from at Conferenz
Date: 27th October 2010
Time: 4:20:28 pm

Hugh Cowen,

IEIEIR (:om Conferenz called following an invitation email she sent through last week. She would like to see if you
are able to attend the conference Feb next year,

The conference is to do with emergency management and will be held with Civil Defense.

Can you please call _

Thank you,

BB 2)

Reception.

12
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From: Hugh Cowan
Sent: ober 2010 10:13 a.m.
Subject: RE: Sea Level rise

Ok-(gqtch you soon. Limited to blackberry, hence brevity. Regards hugh

--- original message ---

From: " NI S
Subject: RE: Sea Level rise

Date: 27th October 2010

Time: 2:33:34 pm

Hi Hugh, That was a quick response from across the sea! EQC seem to have new tight protocols at reception and
they didn't tell me you were overseas. In fact they wouldn't even give me your email and phone DD. The call centre
this morning who took the call gave me your email and cell phone number which was interesting! | appreciate they
are run off their feet what with Ch'Ch earthquake so | understand.

EIBMlE2d | had hoped to get this chapter sorted by end of week (he has just left CCRI to go to AgResearch to run the
Global GHG Alliance Research in Wellington for_ and | am taking over the next stage of the research
programme from him) but I can talk to you next week and resolve how we work the reference to EQC cover and let
mow that. | am available Monday morning but tied up a bit till Thursday. | will call you Monday.

Thx again for responding

Kind regards
a)

Phone: +64

Fax: +64
Mobile:

Email:

Climate Change Research Institute

School of Government, Victoria University of Wellington,
PO Box 600, Wellington 6140

NEW ZEALAND

Website: http://www.victoria.ac.nz/climate-change/

13
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-----0Original Message-----

From: Hugh Cowan [mailto:hacowan@egc.govt.nz]
Sent: Thursday, 28 October 2010 8:45 a.m.

To:

Subject: RE: Sea Level rise

Hi (Sl sorry you were not able to reach me, | am in the US and back in the office on 1 Nov. | wont have time to
respond to your questions in writing just now but would be happy to discuss on return. Would you mind asking
BIBME o a short extension, | am sure he would grant that if possible. He knows | am abroad. Regards Hugh

--- original message ---
Subject: Sea Level rise
Date: 27th October 2010
Time: 1:31:09 pm

Dear Hugh, I am involved with _nd professor

at the Climate Change Research Institute at Victoria University in a FRST
funded research project on Community Vulnerability, Resilience and
Adaptation to Climate Change.

As part of this we have prepared a draft chapter using Auckland case study
material on sea level rise and managed retreat from our research for a book
on coastal management and climate change being coordinated by [EliEllz)

. In the review process -at NIWA raised a couple of issues
which he suggested we check with you directly.

Our understanding is that included in the natural disasters covered in the
case of residential land, is storm or flood. We have assumed that this would
cover such events that are associated with sea level rise. It is less clear
whether sea level rise is covered. In this context given that sea level rise

is a known risk although its timing and magnitude are still somewhat
uncertain does this make a difference as to whether these risks are covered?

The critical issues seems to us to be that damage from storm surge events
especially could be exacerbated by sea level rise. So the two questions are

1 Is damage from flood and storm events at the coast
exacerbated by sea level rise covered by EQC?

2 Is incremental sea level rise causing inundation at
the coast covered?

| appreciate there may not be a clear cut answer to this but it would good

to discuss this. | have been trying to call you but don't seem to get past

the receptionist on two occasions. We need to amend some of the wording in
the chapter depending on the answer to the questions above and have a
deadline of 31 October to get the draft to [§jjglffaSo | will call you a bit

later and discuss with you.

14
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Kind regards

Phone: +64
Fax:
Mobile: +64

Email:

Sl 0@

Climate Change Research Institute

School of Government, Victoria University of Wellington,
PO Box 600, Wellington 6140
NEW ZEALAND

Website: <http://www.victoria.ac.nz/climate-change/>
http://www.victoria.ac.nz/climate-change/

This email message (along with any attachments) is intended
15
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Friday, 29 October 2010 3:23 p.m.
To: _
Subject: RE: Greetings from -

HiEIEERI Nice to hear from you. In fact, | have just landed in LA on my way home following a work trip to the US
but not the west coast this time. | will be pleased to send you some info. One site to start would be the NZ
earthquake engineering site. nzsee.org.nz. Cheers Hugh

--- original message ---
From: " b
Subject: Greetings from
Date: 28th October 2010
Time: 6:34:42 pm

Hi Hugh:

| hope that you are coping well with the tsunami of data from your recent earthquake!? | didn't contact you earlier
in hopes of at least slightly reducing your communication burden. If there is a convenient web site for me to go to
find out about lifelines effects, particularly pipelines and electric power systems, I'd appreciate your sending it when
you have a chance.

I was led to retire from the USGS rather quickly this summer, due to the closing down of the Yucca Mountain Project
in Nevada. |spent over 2-1/2 years on the project, and view it as one of my most successful USGS activities—I served
as the USGS Seismotectonics Science Advisor for the project, reporting to the YMP Science Director, - I got
to use all my past history with nuclear power projects, as well as my recently gained understanding of government
agency bureaucracies. And in addition,-ﬂgg'l have very much enjoyed moving to and living in Las Vegas! We are
continuing on there (I say "there" because we are on the Kona Coast of the Big Island of Hawaii right now for a
family vacation through next

week) and very much enjoy the outdoors activities, the dry and warm weather, and the artistic side of Las Vegas.
The humid air in Hawaii is a bit of a shock--we have become such delicate desert flowers!

I have kept an association with the USGS, and added a volunteer position with the University of Nevada in Las Vegas.
This latter activity is a new direction for me in that I'm directly working with a few students and enjoying it very
much! But | do not teach any classes, apart from an occasional class lecture.

Please bring me up to date on you and your activities, when you have a chance.

Best regards,
Earthquake Science Center
U. S. Geological Survey, Menlo Park, CA

_Department of Geoscience University of Nevada, Las Vegas, NV

office/mobile phone: ElEHENN
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From: Hugh Cowan

Sent: Friday, 29 October 2010 3:18 p.m.

To: 60)a)

Subject: RE: Fw: 360 deg feedback for advanced leadership course

HilgHEBl (15t landed in LA on my way home. | will do the feedback when I get back. Sorry | could not do this sooner.
Cheers Hugh

--- original message ---

From:' : ns.cri.nz>

Subject: Fw: 360 deg feedback for advanced leadership course
Date: 28th October 2010

Time: 5:23:10 pm

Hi ST = c Hugh

| believe two out of the three of you have already filled in the survey - thank you. If the other one would just get it
done that would be great (and sorry again for the hassle).

Thank you.

Cheers, [Sligl (2)

Section Manager GeoHazards Monitoring
GNS Science - Te Pu Ao

W GNS: 64-4-570 1444 Fax: SIENIEIIE v obile:
1 Fairway Drive, P.O. Box 30-368 Lower Hutt New Zealand
---— Forwarded by -/G NS on 29/10/2010 13:20 -----

GNS
14/10/2010 13:53

To

cc

Subject
360 deg feedback for advanced leadership course

Gentlemen

I will start an advanced leadership course next month (at short notice), and for this | need to ask a group of people
to do an online (360) survey on ME.



| know you are all very busy PeipRsssh dpslegite eoriliGi to iRkl uo%hid B4 guys work most directly with

me outside GNS Science), but | would be grateful if you could take the time.
You will be contacted by the survey people (HayGroup).

Thanks in advance.

Cheers, Bl 2)

T —
Section Manager GeoHazards Monitoring
GNS Science - Te Pu Ao

GNS: 64-4-570 1444 Fax: SIENIEHEE "obile:

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

Sent: Sunday, 31 October 2010 2:20 p.m.
To: P

Subject: RE:

Hi Sl thanks for the update. | will be in the office tomorrow and will give attention to your request with urgency.
No promises before then but | appreciate the circumstance and will see what may be possible. Regards Hugh

--- original message ---

From:_ ‘massey.ac.np
Subject:

Date: 31st October 2010

Time: 2:08:05 pm

Dear Hugh,

I have been trying to call you in your office in Wellington earlier this week, but | was told that you are away until mid
next week.

I am writing to you in regard to the pyroclastic flow disaster at Gunung Merapi this Tuesday, where blast-type
pyroclastic density currents travelled down the Kali Gendol valley, then avulsed from the channel onto overbank
areas between 3.5 and 6.5 km from the summit crater to destroy large parts of Kali Adem and to cause at least 33
casualties.

is in Korea at the moment and he asked me to enquire EQC about the possibility of supporting an immediate
response trip to Indonesia as a follow-up visit to our studies of the 2006 pyroclastic flows. The pyroclastic flow
model, which we derived during the course of this last EQC-funded research campaign, allowed us not only to firstly
model how, where and when this type of hazardous escape of pyroclastic flows from channels occurs. In fact, we
also modeled the locations and estimated magnitudes of future valley-escaping events, such as that, which occurred
last week.

There is a unique albeit short time-window now at the start of the rainy season for quantifying important fluid-
dynamical and sedimentary parameters of the valley-escaping surges and the parental valley-confined flows. These
parameters constitute the essential flow-dynamical data, which would allow us, in conjunction with the 2006 data,
to derive a universal model of pyroclastic flow avulsion. Such a model could then be applied world-wide to identify
potential pyroclastic flow avulsion sites and to quantify the effects and probabilities of these types of events.

In Indonesia, we already are in contact with our colleagues from the Indonesian Volcanological Survey (CVGHM)
with whom we collaborate since 2007 through a MOU. Over the last five days we have also been discussing with our
overseas colleagues from the Universities of Buffalo, USA, and Blaire-Pascal, Clermont-Ferrand in France how we can
jointly support our Indonesian colleagues with on state-of-the-art hazard model of pyroclastic flow avulsion from
channels.

I am in Wellington at a conference form 1.-3.11 and | was wondering whether there is a chance to discuss with you
and explain thoroughly the objectives of such a rapid-response visit for current NZ-based research and for
probabilistic hazard forecasting at Taranaki and Ngauruhoe. | give you my cell phone number (SIEITESEED 2s |
might not be able to check emails regularly while in Wellington.

We would be glad if you could assist us in this enquiry, and | am looking forward your response, With all the best

wishes, .a)



